MINUTES FOR BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING

February 14, 2023

6:00 PM

The following elected officials were present: Mayor Coleman, Alderman Cearley, Alderwoman Morrow, Alderman Milton, Alderman Withers and Alderman Martin.

The following staff members were present: Maria Stroupe, Town Manager; Brian Finnegan, Development Services Director; Dusty Haney, Assistant Fire Chief; Sarah Ballard, Town Clerk; Jonathan Newton, Finance Director; Robbie Walls, Police Chief; Bill Trudnak, Public Works Director; Tom Hunn, Town Attorney; Willie Smith, Electric Director; David Lingafelt, Code Enforcement Officer; Paul Gibson Jr., Electric Supervisor; Zack Foreman, Assistant Public Works Director, and Nick Daniello, Parks and Recreation Director.

Mayor Coleman called the meeting to order at 6:00pm.

Mayor Coleman opened with the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

Approval of Agenda:

Alderman Martin made a motion to approve the agenda with 3 additions, seconded by Alderman Withers and carried unanimously.

Recognition of Citizens:

The Mayor opened the floor to the Recognition of Citizens.

Mike Fields of 1333 Philadelphia Church Road thanked the Town Staff for their hard work.

Consent Agenda:

Item 5A Resolution Recognizing Black History Month

Black History Month is an annual celebration of achievements by black Americans and a time for recognizing the central role of African Americans in U.S. history. The event grew out of "Negro History Week", the brainchild of noted historian Carter G. Woodson and other prominent African Americans. President Gerald R. Ford officially recognized Black History Month in 1976, calling upon the public to 'seize the opportunity to honor the too-often neglected accomplishments of black Americans in every area of endeavor throughout our history". Since 1976, every U.S. president has officially designated the month of February as Black History Month. Other countries around the world, including Canada and the United Kingdom, also devote a month to celebrating black history. A proclamation is attached recognizing February as Black History Month (Exhibit 5A-1).

Item 5B Budget Amendment- AIA Grant Reimbursement

In 2021, the Town of Dallas received an Asset and Inventory Assessment (AIA) Grant for our water system. The grant was a \$149,625 grant with a 5% match, resulting in \$142,500 in grant funds to the Town. The project was completed by The Wooten Company over a period of approximately 18 months. The project was budgeted in the FY2021/22 budget year, but the final wrap up and reimbursement was completed in this current FY2022/23 budget year. Attached is a budget amendment to accept the remaining grant funds that were recently received (Exhibit 5B-1).

Item 5C Budget Amendment- Vehicle Damage Reimbursement

The 2013 Police Charger was damaged in a vehicle accident and an insurance check has been received for the damages. Attached is a budget amendment to accept the funds from the insurance company and to appropriate those funds for vehicle repair (Exhibit 5C-1).

Item 5D Budget Amendment- Façade Grant Award

A Façade Grant has been awarded to Jerry Scruggs for façade improvements to 140 N. Gaston St. Attached is a budget amendment to appropriate funds to make the Façade Grant award, as at the time of budget preparation for the current fiscal year, there were no known awards being considered (Exhibit 5D-1).

Item 5E Budget Amendment- NC Forest Service Grant Award

The Fire Department was awarded a 50/50 grant for equipment by the NC Forest Service. Attached is a budget amendment to accept the grant funds and to appropriate funds for the purchase of equipment associated with the grant (Exhibit 5E-1).

Alderwoman Morrow made a motion to approve all items on the consent agenda, seconded by Alderman Martin and carried unanimously.

Public Hearings:

Item 6A Knox Box Ordinance

Alderman Cearley made a motion to go into the public hearing, seconded by Alderwoman Morrow and carried unanimously.

Fire Chief, Earl Withers, has requested the Town adopt a Knox Box ordinance. This will require the installation of a Knox Box system on all new commercial and multi-tenant structures. A Knox Box is a secure rapid entry system designed to be used by Fire Department personnel in the event of an emergency to gain entry into a structure by using the enclosed, owner-provided, key(s). The proposed text amendment was reviewed at the January 24th Board Work Session. No changes have been made to the text since this review. This public hearing was advertised as required by NCGS §160D-601.Notice of the public hearing was placed in the Gaston Gazette once a week for two successive calendar weeks on Thursday, January 26th and February 2nd. Attached is the proposed ordinance text (Exhibit 6A, 1-2).

The Development Services Director presented the information about the Knox Box Ordinance. The Board discussed the information presented and asked questions, which the Town Staff answered.

Alderman Milton made a motion to go out of the public hearing, seconded by Alderman Cearley and carried unanimously.

Alderman Cearley made a motion to approve the Ordinance, seconded by Alderman Martin and carried unanimously.

Item 6B Use of Public Property Ordinance

Alderman Cearley made a motion to go into the public hearing, seconded by Alderman Milton and carried unanimously.

At the November Work Session, Staff was directed to draft an ordinance regulating the use of public property. The proposed text amendment was reviewed at the January 24th Board Work Session. No changes have been made to the text since this review. This public hearing was advertised as required by NCGS §160D-601. Notice of the public hearing was placed in the Gaston Gazette once a week for two successive calendar weeks on Thursday, January 26th and February 2nd. Proposed ordinance, 91.09 Camping, Storage, and Other Uses of Public Property is attached (Exhibit 6B, 1-3).

The Development Services Director presented the information to the Board. The Board and the Town Attorney discussed the information and decided to revise and change some of the wording in the ordinance.

Alderman Cearley made a motion to go out of the public hearing, seconded by Alderman Martin and carried unanimously.

Alderman Withers made a motion to approve the ordinance with the corrections, seconded by Alderwoman Morrow and carried unanimously.

6C Text Amendment to Add Single-Family Attached Dwellings to the R-6 Zoning District

The Board remained in the closed session from the December 13th, 2022 meeting.

At the December 13, 2022 Board of Aldermen meeting, a public hearing was held in reference to a text amendment to add single-family attached dwellings to the R-6 zoning district. This public

hearing followed prior discussions on the topic at the September 27, 2022 and November 22, 2022 Board of Aldermen Work Sessions. A text amendment petition had been submitted by David Murray, on behalf of KovalXRobinson LLC. The amendment would permit, by-right, single-family attached housing in the R-6 zoning district with a minimum lot width of 20 ft., a minimum lot area of 1500 sq. ft., and a minimum side yard exemption. Staff reviewed the petition, and are in support of the change, with modifications. The requested minimum lot width of 20 ft. and 1500 sq. ft. lot area should only apply to interior lots. Exterior lots, or end units, should be required to have a minimum side yard of 6 ft., a minimum lot width of 30 ft., and minimum lot area of 2100 sq. ft. On August 8, 2022, the Planning Board unanimously voted to send their recommendation, along with statements of consistency and reasonableness, to approve the proposed text amendment as written. This public hearing is a continuation of the public hearing opened on December 13, 2022 and was advertised as required by NCGS §160D-601. Notice of the public hearing was placed in the Gaston Gazette once a week for two successive calendar weeks on Tuesday, November 29, 2022 and Tuesday, December 6, 2022 (Exhibit 6C, 1-6).

The Development Services Director reported that KovalXRobinson LLC had withdrew their petition by written request.

Alderman Martin made a motion to go out of the public hearing, seconded by Alderman Cearley and carried unanimously.

No action needed.

Old Business:

There was no old business at this time.

New Business:

Item 8A Placard Peachtree St. Residence for Minimum Housing

The Town of Dallas has received multiple complaints for minimum housing and property maintenance issues regarding the structure at 510 E. Peachtree Street. After performing on-site inspections on November 16, 2022, Code Enforcement Officer David Lingafelt, sent mailed notices to the registered property owners on November 21, 2022. The notice was also placed on the front door of the property. After due notice, an administrative hearing was held on December 20, 2022 at 11:00 am. Code Enforcement Officer David Lingafelt was in attendance. No other parties of interest attended the hearing. Findings of facts deemed the property a deteriorated dwelling, unit for human habitation. Findings were sent to property owners on December 20, 2022, with a repair order deadline of January 23, 2023. The property owner has failed to comply with the order and Code Enforcement is seeking Board approval to placard the property, as required by §150.43(C). An ordinance has been provided by staff (Exhibit 8A-1).

The Town Manager gave the presentation to the Board.

Alderman Martin made a motion to approve the ordinance, seconded by Alderman Cearley and carried unanimously.

Item 8B Planning Board Reappointment- T. Smith

Thomas Smith's current three-year term on the Planning Board has expired. Mr. Smith has expressed interest in continuing his service on this board. The Board of Aldermen may reappoint him for another three-year term (February 2023- February 2026). Mr. Smith has been, and continues to be, an asset to the Town and Staff recommends his reappointment to serve.

Alderman Cearley made a motion to approve the reappointment, seconded by Alderman Withers and carried unanimously.

Item 8C Planning Board Reappointment- T. Faro

Tiffany Faro's current three-year term on the Planning Board has expired. Ms. Faro has expressed interest in continuing her service on this board. The Board of Aldermen may reappoint her for another three-year term (February 2023- February 2026). Ms. Faro has been, and continues to be, an asset to the Town and Staff recommends her reappointment to serve.

Alderman Cearley made a motion to approve the reappointment, seconded by Alderwoman Morrow and carried unanimously.

Item 8D Flag Placement

The Board and Town Staff discussed leaving up American Flags year- round at the Court Square. No action was taken.

Item E East Robinson Street

The Board and Town Staff discussed the issue of trash and debris on East Robinson Street and what could be done to clean up that area. No action was taken.

Item F No Parking Ordinance

The Board and Town Staff discussed the issue of on-street parking ordinances and ways it could be corrected. No action was taken.

The Town Manager reminded the Board of up-coming events.

Closed Session:

To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, which privilege is hereby acknowledged. NCGS §143-318-11(3).

Alderman Cearley made a motion to go into closed session, seconded by Alderwoman Morrow and carried unanimously (7:12).

Alderwoman Morrow made a motion to go out of closed session, seconded by Alderman Cearley (8:17).

No action taken.

Alderman Cearley made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Alderman Milton and carried unanimously (8:17).

Rick Coleman, Mayor

Sarah Hamrick Ballard, Town Clerk

WHEREAS, throughout the month of February, Black History Month with the theme of "Black Resistance", will be observed in our State and Nation as a tangible way of encouraging all citizens to learn about and appreciate the contributions of African Americans and their impact on our past, present, and future; and

WHEREAS, Black History Month's early origins began in February 1926, when "Negro History Week" was established by Dr. Carter G. Woodson, a Harvard scholar and a son of former slaves. Dr. Woodson launched an initiative to encourage the study of black history and the African-American experience in the United States. He chose February because it marked the birthdays of President Abraham Lincoln and the American abolitionist Frederick Douglass. Dr. Woodson's legacy influenced the eventual shift from "Negro History Week" to a month-long celebration later to be established in the mid 1970's and celebrated thereafter as "Black History Month: and

WHEREAS, African American legends such as writer Maya Angelou, freedom fighter Harriet Jacobs, educator Dr. Charlotte Hawkins Brown, scholar John Hope Franklin, sport hero Michael Jordan, artist Romare Bearden, and musicians John Coltrane and Thelonious Monk went from being citizens of North Carolina to citizens of the world; and

WHEREAS, North Carolina's African American history is celebrated and studied at State Historic sites such as Historic Edenton, Charlotte Hawkins Brown Museum, Somerset Place, Historic Stagville, Reed Gold Mine, Tryon Palace Historic Sites & Gardens, Roanoke Island Festival Park, and the N.C. Transportation Museum; and

WHEREAS, Black History Month pays tribute to and recognizes the numerous outstanding accomplishments, past and present, that African Americans make to our community, state, nation, and the world;

WHEREAS, the year 2023 also marks the fifty-ninth anniversary of the Civil Rights Act, which was first proposed by President John F. Kennedy in 1963, and eventually signed into law during the height of the American Civil Rights Movement on July 2, 1964 by President Lyndon B. Johnson. The legislation prohibited discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin and paved the way for future anti-discrimination legislation.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Town of Dallas Board of Aldermen, as adopted this the 14th day of February 2023, do hereby proclaim February 2023 as "BLACK HISTORY MONTH" and call upon the citizens of Dallas to observe and commemorate Black History Month as we celebrate the accomplishments and contributions of African Americans.

Rick Coleman, Mayor

ATTESTED:

12.0

Sarah Ballard, Town Clerk

Date: February 14, 2023

Action: Water/Sewer Fund Amendment

Purpose: To Accept Final Water AIA Grant Reimbursement Funds

Number: WS-004

			Line		Original	Amended	
	Fund	Dept	ltem	Item Description	Amount	Amount	Difference
-	20	3999	0000	Fund Balance Appropriated	\$81,177	\$9,102	(\$72,075)
	20	3455	0000	Grant Revenue	\$2,648	\$74,723	\$72,075

,

Date: February 14, 2023

Action: General Fund Amendment

Purpose: To Accept and Appropriate Insurance Funds for Vehicle Damage Repair - 2013 Dodge Charger

Number: PD-002

		Line		Original	Amended		
Fund	d Dept Item It		Item Description	Amount	Amount	Difference	
 10	3500	0000	Miscellaneous	\$5,000	\$6,649	\$1,649	
10	5100	1700	Maint & Repair: Vehicles	\$34,500	\$36,149	\$1,649	

Approval Signature (Town Manager)

Date: February 14, 2023

Action: Economic Development Fund Amendment

Purpose: To Appropriate Funds to Award a Façade Grant for 140 N. Gaston St.

Number: ED-003

			Line		Original	Amended			
_	Fund	Dept	ltem	Item Description	Amount	Amount	Difference		
_	33	3999	0000	Fund Balance	\$253,650	\$268,650	\$15,000		
	33	8500	7900	Façade Grants	\$0	\$15,000	\$15,000		

Date: February 14, 2023

Action: General Fund Amendment

Purpose: To Accept and Appropriated Funds Associated with a NC Forest Service Grant

Number: FD-002

			Line		Original	Amended	
_	Fund	Dept	ltem	Item Description	Amount	Amount	Difference
	10	3455	0000	Grant Revenue	\$17,129	\$18,088	\$959
	10	3999	0000	Fund Balance Appropriated	\$538,619	\$539,578	\$959
	10	5200	3400	Equipment	\$25,858	\$27,776	\$1,918

§ 35.11 KNOX BOXES

A Knox Box is a secure rapid entry system designed to be used by Fire Department personnel in the event of an emergency to gain entry into a structure by using the enclosed, owner provided, key(s).

- (A) Applicability
 - (1) A Knox Box system shall be required on all new commercial structures and multitenant residential structures containing automatic sprinkler systems or fire alarm systems.
 - (2) Existing properties and business are highly encouraged, but not required, to purchase a Knox Box system.
 - (3) Knox Boxes shall be located on the address side of the building near the front door, mounted between five and six feet from ground level.
 - (4) The owner and/or tenant of the building is responsible for ensuring that all required and current entry keys are in the Knox Box at all times.
 - (5) Approved devices can be ordered online at www.knoxbox.com.



nmegon, Town Planner, of inmegon@ddljosncinet) 8366388 1/26 7/2/23

EXHIBIT 6A-2

§ 91.09 CAMPING, STORAGE AND OTHER USES OF PUBLIC PROPERTY

- (A) Purpose. The streets and public areas within the town should be readily accessible and available to residents and the public at large. The use of these areas for camping purposes interferes with the rights of others to use the areas for which they were intended. Such activity can constitute a public health and safety hazard, which adversely affects neighborhoods and commercial spaces. Camping on private property without the owner's consent, without proper sanitary measures, and for other than a minimal duration adversely affects private property rights as well as public health, safety, and welfare of the town. The purpose of this section is to maintain streets, parks, and other public and private areas within the town in a clean, sanitary, and accessible condition and to protect the health, safety, and public welfare of the community while recognizing that subject to reasonable conditions, camping and camp facilities associated with special events can be beneficial to the cultural and educational climate in the town. Nothing in this section is intended to interfere with otherwise lawful and ordinary uses of public or private property
- (B) *Definitions*. As used in this article, the terms listed below shall have the following definitions in addition to their ordinary dictionary definitions, unless a different meaning is required by context:

Camp or *Camping* means sleeping, making preparations to sleep (including lying down or the laying down of bedding for the purpose of sleeping), and/or storing personal belongings; the placement of tents, huts, tarps; parking of a motor vehicle, motor home or trailer, or mooring of a vessel or any other type of structure for living accommodation purposes.

Camp Facilities include, but are not limited to, tents, huts, vehicles, vehicle camping outfits, or temporary shelter.

Establish means setting up or moving equipment, supplies, or materials onto public or

private property to "camp" or operate camp facilities.

Maintain means keeping or permitting equipment, supplies, or materials to remain on public or private property to camp or operate camp facilities.

Operate means participating or assisting in establishing or maintaining a camp or camp facility.

Private Property means all privately-owned property including, but not limited to, streets, sidewalks, alleys, and improved or unimproved land.

Public Property means all town-owned property including, but not limited to, streets, sidewalks, alleys, improved or unimproved land, and parks.

Store means to put aside or accumulate for use when needed, to put for safekeeping, to place or leave in a location.

Trail Facility means any Class 1 trail, bicycle or multi-use trail, or natural trail that is owned, maintained, or operated by the town, including any area or access point adjoining the trail which the town owns or maintains an easement.

Unattended Property means no person is present with the personal property that asserts or claims ownership over the personal property. Conversely, the property is considered "attended" if a person is present with the personal property and the person claims ownership over the personal property.

Vehicle for the purpose of this chapter shall be defined by N.C.G.S. § 20-4.01 as it now exists or may hereafter be amended

and the second second second second

- (C) Unlawful Camping on Public Property. It is unlawful to camp upon any public property within town limits, including, without limitation, streets, sidewalks, parking lots, parking structures, easements, open spaces, parks, cemeteries, real property, or corporation yards. Any encampment on publicly-owned property within the town that is deemed a high risk to the public's health and safety will be posted "No Trespass", removed, and cleaned. Camping as defined in this section is deemed a public nuisance, and the town may summarily remove a temporary shelter, bedding, or personal belongings.
- (D) *Permitted Camping during Special Events*. Camping on public or private property permitted only as a temporary ancillary use during an approved and permitted special event approved by the Board of Aldermen.
- (E) No Storage on Town Property. It is prohibited to leave or allow to remain unattended any equipment, packages, bags, or other personal belongings on public property unless in direct relation to a permitted special event approved by the Board of Aldermen. Any such item is subject to removal by the town. This prohibition does not apply to bicycles, carts, strollers, or other means of personal transportation, secured in such a way as to not obstruct a street or sidewalk, or to interfere with the use of town property. This article shall not apply to offices or other non-public areas assigned to or under the control of town employees or agents.
- (F) *Enforcement*. Any sworn law enforcement officer shall have the authority to enforce this section.
 - (1) Penalty. Any person who violates any of the provisions of this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor as provided in G.S. § 14-4 and, upon conviction, shall be subject to a maximum fine of \$500.00 per occurrence, imprisonment, or both pursuant with § 10.99 of this code.
 - (2) Severability. If any provision of this section is declared invalid or unconstitutional for any reason, the remaining provisions shall be severable and shall continue in full force and effect.



Staff Report

Zoning Text Amendment Request: T-2022-02

Applicants: KovalXRobinson, LLC

Authorized Agent: David Murray, Murray Law Firm

Request: The applicant is requesting to add single-family attached housing (townhomes) to the R-6 zoning district in the Table of Permitted Uses in Appendix C of Chapter 153 in the Town of Dallas Code of Ordinances. Additionally, the applicant is requesting the lot specifications be reduced for such housing with a minimum interior lot width of 20 feet and a minimum interior lot area of 1500 square feet in Appendix A of Chapter 153.

Staff Analysis: The proposed text amendment, if approved, will add single-family attached housing to the R-6 as a by right permitted use. As written, the text amendment will allow townhomes in the densest residential districts in the zoning ordinance with a feasible minimum width requirement for both interior lots and end units.

The request of a 20ft interior lot seems to be within the current industry standards for singlefamily attached housing. "Missing Middle Housing" lists townhomes ranging from 18-25 feet wide. Looking at current development in the area, there are several townhome neighborhoods that fall in this range. Ryan Homes at Tupelo Townhomes in Gastonia shows interior lots at 22' widths on the recorded plat at bk94 pg100. Villages at Cramerton Mills Townhomes in Cramerton shows a similar width, recorded at bk91 pg100, and the Eagle Park Subdivision in Belmont has a recorded interior lot width of 16.29' at bk83 pg9. The recently approved conditional zoning for Robinson Glenn proposed by DR Horton also showed 20ft interior units on the CD site plan. Current development in the area is building in the average range for townhomes mentioned above. The request of the applicant to build an interior lot at a 20ft width is consistent with the current standards of the area.

Staff set the exterior lot width to a minimum of 30ft. This is 4ft wider than the setback requirements for R-5 & R-6, and 2ft wider than R-8. Given the allowance for narrower lots there is the potential to have taller buildings to compensate. The additional requirement on the side yard would increase the offset from existing neighboring structures as well as intersecting side streets for corner lots to balance the aesthetic of the community. The existing R-6 zone would allow this product to be built in established neighborhoods with older homes that were generally smaller structures with minimal setbacks, so to accommodate for the larger structures in these areas an additional side setback requirement is suggested. Front and rear setback increases would

potentially contribute to this balance, but doesn't seem feasible and isn't suggested at this time. This would be the minimum required side yard, and the end lots would still be subject to the additional ten feet required for all corner lots.

Comprehensive Land Use Plan: The proposed text amendment is consistent with the 2030 Comprehensive Land Use Plan. Existing R-6 zones on the zoning map fall into the Urban Neighborhood, Mixed-Use Neighborhood, and Single Family Residential categories as shown on the Future Land Use Map. All three categories reference single family attached housing (townhomes) as appropriate land use. The Urban Neighborhood and Mixed-Use Neighborhood categories describe blended housing. Allowing townhomes in this district will offer a mix of higher density rental and ownership housing.

Staff Recommendation: The proposed text amendment offers an expansion and increased accessibility to develop housing that is not readily available in Dallas. The proposed language modifies the current restrictions on townhomes to allow for lot standards that meet the design for standard townhome development. Staff is in favor of the petition and recommends the Planning Board recommend approval to the Board of Aldermen.

Case#) _ _ _ _

Town of Dallas 210 N. Holland Street Dallas, NC 28034 704-922-3176

Petition for Text Amendment

Name of Applicant	KovalXRobinson, LLC	
Address of Applicant	c/o Murray Law Firm, PLL	C, 1901 Roxborough Rd., Ste. 120, Charlotte, NC 28211
Contract Information: Te	lephone 704-940-9095	Email david@murraylawfirm.com; val@kovalbuilders.net
Requested Change(s) to 2	Zoning or Subdivision Ordinand	ce Text Petitioner is seeking to amend the text
in order to allow single	e-family attached dwellings (townhomes) within the R-6 district with a 20'
minimum lot width, mi	nlmum lot area of 1500 sf, a	nd minimum side yard exemption.

Specific Section(s) # Requested Change Section 153.026; Appendix A

We/I certify that all information provided in this application is accurate to the best of our/my knowledge, information, and belief. Furthermore, by signing this request, we/I agree to pay for advertising costs associated with this petition. We/I understand that this petition must be completed in full and the required fee paid for acceptance.

6/21/22

Signature of Applicant

Date

Fee: \$ 500 plus advertising costs.

OFFICE USE ONLY Accepted as complete: BP Date	6/22/	22
Action: On the Planning Board recommended that this petition be	e: Approved Denied 🗖	
On the Board of Aldermen held a Public Hearing co	ncerning this r	equest. By vote
of the Board they:	Approved 🗆	Denied 🗖

APPENDIX A: YARD AND HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS

Zone	Minimum Lot Area (Sq. Ft.)	Minimum Lot Area Per Dwelling Unit (Sq. Ft.)	Minimum Lot Width (In feet)	Minimum Front and Rear* Yard Depth (In feet)	Individual Minimum Side Yard Depth (In feet)	Minimum Side Yard Depth (In feet)*	Maximu m Building Height
Zone	Minimum Lot Area (Sq. Ft.)	Minimum Lot Area Per Dwelling Unit (Sq. Ft.)	Minimum Lot Width (In feet)	Minimum Front and Rear* Yard Depth (In feet)	Individual Minimum Side Yard Depth (In feet)	Minimum Side Yard Depth (In feet)*	Maximu m Building Height
R-15	15,000	15,000	100	45	15	15	35 feet
R-12	12,000	12,000	90	40	12	12	35 feet
R-10	10,000	10,000	80	35	10	10	35 feet
R-8	8,000	8,000 single 6,000 1st unit 3,000 additional unit each	70	30	8	8	35 feet
R-6	6,000**	6,000** single 5,000 1st unit 2,500 additional unit each	60**	25	6	6	35 feet
R-5	5,500 **	5,500 ** - 500 SF per attached side	50	25***	6	6	35 feet

EXHIBIT 6C-5

	 	 	^ I			
RMF	15,000 1st unit 3.500 additional unit each	45	45	45	35 feet	

* An additional ten feet shall be required to the requirements listed above on all side yards which abut a public or private street (corner lots)

** For R-5 Districts: Attached housing shall be exempt from side yard setback requirements, and may reduce lot width by 5 feet for each attached side. Further reduction may be permitted through conditional zoning. Attached buildings to include 3 or more units are only allowed with conditional approval regardless of zoning designation.-For R-6 Districts: Single Family Attached Housing (Townhomes) only—interior single lots shall have a minimum required width of 20 feet with no required side setback and a minimum required lot area of 1500 square feet. Exterior units shall have a minimum lot width of 30 feet and a minimum required lot area of 2100 square feet.

*** Rear setback may be reduced by 5 feet at the discretion of Town Staff if requested to accommodate a larger front setback for parking purposes only. Further reduction may be permitted through conditional zoning.

**** Buildings may exceed 35 feet in height. But for each five feet or fraction thereof of additional height above 35 feet, each yard shall be increased five feet over the minimum requirements. Any height above 45 feet may only be approved through conditional zoning.

APPENDIX C: PERMITTED USES CHART

			f	Reside	ential				Office		Bu	sine:	65		Industria 1
	R-15	R-12	R-10	R- 8	R- 6	R- 5	RMF	RMF -H	O&I-1	BC -1	В- 1	B -2	В- З	В- 3 Р	<i>I-2</i>
				-		-			/ - check y - check					L	F
Permi	tted Us	es (any i	use not s	specifi	ed bel	ow is (eligible t	o apply t	for condit	ional z	oning	i app	roval)	
RESIDENTIAL			···								·				
Single-family dwellings (attached)					Х	Х									
Single-family dwellings (detached)	Х	Х	Х	X	Х	Х									
Manufactured/ mobile homes					Х	Х									
Trailer camps/mobile home parks					Х										
Multi-family residential				X	Х	*******	Х	Х	-		S	S	S	S	
Fraternities		S	S	S	S							S			
Homes for the aged and infirm	Х	X	Х												
Mixed use residential							X	X			S	S		S	
Nursing homes for chronic or convalescent patients	X	X	Х												

ORDINANCE ORDERING TO VACATE AND CLOSE A DWELLING

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE ORDERING TO VACATE AND CLOSE THE DWELLING AT <u>510</u> <u>EAST PEACHTREE STREET</u> PURSUANT TO THE HOUSING ORDINANCE, CHAPTER 150, OF THE TOWN OF DALLAS CODE OF ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER 160D OF THE GENERAL STATUTES OF NORTH CAROLINA, SAID BUILDING BEING THE PROPERTY OF <u>MICHAEL W LACOUNT</u> RESIDING AT <u>9210 GINHOUSE LANE, CHARLOTTE, NC 28277</u>.

WHEREAS, the dwelling located at <u>510 East Peachtree Street</u> in the Town of Dallas has been found by the Town Housing Inspector to be in violation of the Housing Ordinance, Chapter 150, of the Town of Dallas Code of Ordinances and the owners thereof have been ordered to repair, alter or improve or vacate or close said dwelling, all pursuant to the Housing Ordinance, Chapter 150, of the Town of Dallas Code of Ordinances and Chapter 160D of the General Statutes of North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, the Housing Inspector, after notice and hearing, stated in writing his findings of fact and issued an order directing and requiring the owner(s) to repair, alter and improve the structure, and

WHEREAS, said owner(s) have failed to comply with said order served by registered mail on December 20, 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners, that the Housing Inspector is hereby ordered to cause the owners to vacate and close the dwelling located at <u>510</u> <u>East Peachtree Street</u> in the Town of Dallas, and to post on the main entrance of the dwelling a placard containing the following: "This building is unfit for human habitation; the use or occupation of this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful" all in accordance with the Housing Ordinance, Chapter 150, of the Town of Dallas Code of Ordinances, Chapter 160D of the General Statutes of North Carolina.

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.

Adopted, this the 14th day of February, 2023.

ATTEST:

Rick Coleman, Mayor

Sarah Ballard, Town Clerk